	State of Nevada
	


	Brian Sandoval

	Department of Administration
	
	Governor

	Purchasing Division
	
	

	515 E. Musser Street, Suite 300
	
	Jeffrey Haag

	Carson City, NV  89701
	
	Administrator



	SUBJECT:
	[bookmark: _GoBack]Amendment 1 to Request for Proposal 3231

	RFP TITLE:
	Recordkeeping Services For The Nevada Prepaid Tuition Program

	DATE OF AMENDMENT:
	June 10, 2016

	DATE OF RFP RELEASE:
	May 19, 2016

	OPENING DATE:
	June 30, 2016

	OPENING TIME:
	2:00 PM

	CONTACT:
	Ronda Miller, Procurement Staff Member




The following shall be a part of RFP 3231.  If a vendor has already returned a proposal and any of the information provided below changes that proposal, please submit the changes along with this amendment.  You need not re-submit an entire proposal prior to the opening date and time.


1.	Section 1.2 states “As of January 2016, the Program had 18,642 accounts.” How many of the 	850 new contracts as of April 18, 2016 are included in the 18,642?

	As of June 2016, the Program had 19,338 accounts including:

· 4,974 paid in full accounts waiting for beneficiary to martriculate
· 3,914 accounts currently in monthly payment status
· 2,722 accounts in distribution status
· 383 delinquent accounts (range from 30 to 180 days)
· 236 accounts in a deferred usage status
· 7,109 inactive, closed accounts.

2.	Section 3.1.1.6 mentions online capabilities for students.  Would this be the same access and 	information that is available to a purchaser?  If not, will the State please specify what 	information is made available to the student?

The student and the purchaser should be able to view the same information but the only information a student should be able to change is their own address and/or contact information.   View access should include distribution details such as date of distribution, school, term, credit hours used, amount of payment, and credit hours remaining.

3.	Section 3.1.1.6 mentions online capabilities for schools. Would this access allow a school to 	view a complete list of all eligible students, or would individual school lists be available for 	each in-state college and university?  How often are these lists updated?  What lists are 	available for a school to view (eg. depleted, graduated, eligible, in-eligible)?

Currently a daily report is sent to the in-state schools that are part of the Nevada System of Higher Education.  The in-state schools are made up of two universities, four community colleges, and one state college.  The daily report consists of active, eligible students and contains the student information such as name, address, birthdate, plan purchased, credit hours remaining, and the name of the school authorized to bill the Program for that student. There is not a separate report for each school.  The in-state schools have access to submit invoices directly to the Program for their students by using an on-line school portal.  The portal allows the in-state schools to upload an excel spreadsheet with the required data and completes the distributions automatically in the Program’s system.  The State would like in-state schools to continue to have this functionality; however, we encourage bidders to provide any suggested alternatives which may improve efficiencies. 

4.	Section 3.1.1.5:  Will all distributions be processed through the State of Nevada Comptroller’s 	Office?  If not, how will distributions to colleges, universities, and purchasers be produced?

The State currently processes all payments through the State Controller’s office, but is open to Vendor’s suggestions.  State is looking for proposals that will process distributions in the most efficient and cost effective manner.  

5.	The RFP identifies a Contract Start Date of 9/13/16. Would the State also please identify the 	anticipated Implementation Date?

The State desires to implement as soon as practical. We are seeking recommendations regarding implementation timelines and dates. 

6.	Section 3.1.1.2 mentions interaction by phone and email.  What is the approximate number of 	phone calls and emails received each month?

Approximately 1,160 calls are received a month.  From December 2015 to February 2016 there was an average of 959 calls per month that came in on the Program’s direct number and 202 calls that came in on the toll-free number. There are approximately 420 emails received per month.

7.	Section 3.1.1.3 mentions customer mailings.  What is the type, frequency, and approximate 	number of each customer mailing?  Does this include coupon books?  If so, how many coupon 	books are mailed each year?

There are various mailings that occur throughout the year.  Please note we encourage vendors to consider alternatives to USPS mailings, such as access to information via customer or vendor portals.  See table below:

	Type
	Frequency
	Approximate Number
	Number of Pages

	Annual Statements
	Once a year
	12,000
	1 page

	1099 Q’s
	Once  a year
	2,740
	1 page

	Student Handbooks/Matriculation Forms
	Once a year
	760
	1 booklet with 1 letter and 3 forms

	Enrollment Books/Enrollment Forms
	Weekly during open enrollment period
	100 throughout enrollment period
	1 booklet with 3 page form

	Welcome Packs
	Weekly during open enrollment period
	Varies based on enrollment, increases at end of enrollment period
	4 pages plus 9 page master agreement

	Late and Delinquency Letters
	Monthly
	200
	1 page

	ACH confirmation
	Monthly
	7 per month, jumps to 25 per month during open enrollment
	1 page

	Paid in Full Letters
	Monthly
	25 per month, jumps to 40 during open enrollment
	1 page

	Units Depleted Letters
	Monthly
	25 per month
	1 page

	Return Item Notices(including ACH, check, and e-payment returns)
	Monthly/On as needed basis
	15 per month
	1 page

	Contract Changes Confirmation(including change of purchaser, beneficiary, legal successor, change in plans and payment options)
	On an as needed basis
	15 per month
	3-5 pages depending on change being completed

	Cancellation Letters
	On an as needed basis
	27 per month
	1 page

	Benefits Exhausted Notices
	Annually
	100 per year
	2 pages

	Pending Cancellation Notices
	Once a month
	5-10 per month
	1 page

	Private/Out-of-State Fee Notices
	On an as needed basis
	10 per month with an influx to 30 per month in June and July
	1 page

	Misc. Correspondence as needed and/or requested by participants.
	On an as needed basis
	20 per month
	Typically 1 page



Approximately 500 5-year books are sent yearly.  

8.	Section 3.1.1.3 mentions customer mailings.  Are there any mailings sent to the schools or any 	other entity?  If so, what is the type, frequency, and approximate number of each of these 	mailings?

In addition to the mailings referenced in Question number 7, there are no paper mailings to the schools. Currently, Vendor Registration Forms and student Request for Tuition Invoice forms are emailed or faxed to Private or out-of-state schools.   The Request for Tuition Invoice form is to request a private/out-of-state school to invoice the Program.  This form includes students’ information along with current tuition rates and credit hours available to student along with instructions on how the school should invoice the Program.  These are sent on an as needed basis throughout the year and volume varies through the year, with an influx in May to July with each new HS graduating class.  There were roughly 760 new graduates in 2016  and on average 25% of students attend private/out-of-state schools giving an estimate of 190 forms to be sent out from May to July.

The Program also generates a daily file for the seven in-state public schools that are part of the Nevada System of Higher Education (NSHE).  The file is extracted from the system and sent via ftp to NSHE on a daily basis.  The file includes a listing of the students that are eligible to use their benefits.  It also includes information such as the plan purchased, credit hours remaining, and the name of school authorized to bill Program for student.


9.	Will Nevada retain responsibility for updates to Website materials, the Handbook, customer 	mailings, privacy policy and application forms, and provide those updates to the vendor?

The Program would be responsible for updating website materials including such things as marketing materials, master agreement, student handbooks, policies, etc., and will provide such to the vendor.

10.	Can the Student Handbook be provided in an electronic format, rather than in hard copy, upon 	client request?

Yes, upon client request.  A PDF copy of student handbook is also available to anyone on our website.

11.	Who maintains the credit card payment processor and payment provider?  Does the State intend 	to continue using their current providers for this project?

	The State’s current vendor is Wells Fargo Merchant Services. Yes, we must use this vendor. 

12.	For contributions, disbursements and other money exchanged, who is responsible for cutting 	the checks, making the payments, and maintaining the bank account?  Whose name is on the 	checks?

Currently the bank account is maintained by the Prepaid Program with all contributions /distributions funneling through the bank account and State Controller’s office.  However, we are open to vendors’ proposals.  Please detail your recommendation in your RFP response.

There are no checks issued by the Prepaid Program directly.  Any checks issued are from the State Controller’s Office and have the State of Nevada listed on them.  Checks are typically issued for refunds to participants as they are one-time only.  The State Controller’s office requires all other payments sent to vendors (including schools) to be sent via ACH or Fedwire.

13.	Section 1.2-What is the average number of contacts the Agency receives from Purchasers and 	Beneficiaries per month?

Approximately 1,160 calls are received a month.  From December 2015 to February 2016 there was an average of 959 calls per month that came in on the Program’s direct number and 202 calls that came in on the toll-free number. There are approximately 420 emails received per month.  

14.	Section 1.3-Is it the intention of the State to award one contract pursuant to this RFP?

	Yes.

15.	Section 2.1- Does Nevada expect the awarded vendor to provide services on the State observed 	holidays?

Vendor would not be expected to provide services on State holidays; however, the State expects vendor to offer 24/7 online access to participants.


16.	Section 3.1.1.3-Regarding Fulfilment Customer Communications responsibilities:
	a.	Will the State reimburse the contractor for expenses such as postage and printing, or 		does that need to be built into the project cost?

The State is looking for the most efficient and cost effective method for handling fulfillment and the vendor should outline in its cost proposal whether these costs are all-in or separate. 

	b.	Can the State provide a list of documents included, along with frequency of sending 	each, the preferred method for transmitting them to stakeholders, and the number of pages of 	each?

Currently documents are mailed to participants.  Please note we encourage vendors to consider alternatives to USPS mailings, such as access to information via customer or vendor portals. See table below with breakdown of documents.

	Type
	Frequency
	Approximate Number
	Number of Pages

	Annual Statements
	Once a year
	12,000
	1 page

	1099 Q’s
	Once  a year
	2,740
	1 page

	Student Handbooks/Matriculation Forms
	Once a year
	750
	1 booklet with 1 letter and 3 forms

	Enrollment Books/Enrollment Forms
	Weekly during open enrollment period
	100 throughout enrollment period
	1 booklet with 3 page form

	Welcome Packs
	Weekly during open enrollment period
	Varies based on enrollment, increases at end of enrollment period
	4 pages plus 9 page master agreement

	Late and Delinquency Letters
	Monthly
	200
	1 page

	ACH confirmation
	Monthly
	7 per month, jumps to 25 per month during open enrollment
	1 page

	Paid in Full Letters
	Monthly
	25 per month, jumps to 50 during open enrollment
	1 page

	Units Depleted Letters
	Monthly
	20 per month
	1 page

	Return Item Notices(including ACH, check, and e-payment returns)
	Monthly/On as needed basis
	15 per month
	1 page

	Contract Changes Confirmation(including change of purchaser, beneficiary, legal successor, change in plans and payment options)
	On an as needed basis
	15 per month
	3-5 pages depending on change being completed

	Cancellation Letters
	On an as needed basis
	27 per month
	1 page

	Benefits Exhausted Notices
	Annually
	100 per year
	2 pages

	Pending Cancellation Notices(180 days delinquent)
	Once a month
	5-10 per month
	1 page

	Private/Out-of-State Fee Notices
	On an as needed basis
	10 per month with an influx to 30 per month in June and July
	1 page

	Misc. Correspondence as needed and/or requested by participants.
	On an as needed basis
	20 per month
	Typically 1 page



	c.	Is it acceptable to the State for documents to be accessible to stakeholders via the 529 	portal?

	Yes, but a PDF version would need to be available to download from the portal.

	d.	Is it acceptable to the State for documents to be e-mailed via a secure e-mail through the 	529 portal to stakeholders?

	The State is willing to consider delivery via email depending on the document.

17.	Section 9.1.3-Is there any option for proposers to learn the names of vendors submitting 	proposals if they are unable to attend the public opening?

Yes, upon receipt of the bids on June 30, 2016 the names of the vendors who submitted bids are public information. Please note the contents of the bids is not public information until the Notice of Award has been issued.

18.	Sections 9.6.4.1.B and 9.6.4.2.C.-Is a CD envelope an acceptable container for a CD, instead of 	a plastic case?

Yes, as long as the case is clearly labeled according to the instructions in the RFP and the CD is readable.

19.	Attachment B-If Vendors wish to submit exceptions, is it appropriate to mark, “NO” at the top 	of the form to so indicate this?

Yes, it is appropriate to mark ‘No’ and then note all exceptions. 

20.	Attachment D-Three references in the Contract for Services of Independent Contractor are 	made to Attachment BB.  Can the State please provide a copy of this attachment or confirm if it 	is equivalent to Attachment E Insurance Schedule for RFP 3231?

	Yes, Attachment BB is the equivalent to Attachment E Insurance Schedule for RFP 3231.

21.	Attachment J, Fee Chart- Will fees collected, including the enrollment fee, be retained by the 	contract awardee, or be retained by the State? How much was collected in fees in the last fiscal 	year period?

All fees received by participants will be remitted to the State.  Last fiscal year, approximately $174,155.00 was collected in fees in the following categories: 

Enrollment fees:  $101,000 
Cancellation fees:  $28,100
All other fees (approximately): $45,055    (e.g. late, return payment, out-of-state processing, contract changes, etc.)

ALL ELSE REMAINS THE SAME FOR RFP 3231.


Vendor must sign and return this amendment with proposal submitted.

	Vendor Name:
	

	Authorized Signature:
	

	Title:
	
	Date:
	






	This document must be submitted in the “State Documents” section/tab of vendors’ technical proposal.
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